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VISION

TO TURN AROUND THE COMPANY INTO A
PROFITABLE UNDERTAKING ITS LIFE
AND TO BE A MARKET LEADER BY BEING
THE BEST LEADER BY BEING THE BEST

MISSION

TO PROVIDE FINE QUALITY PRODUCTS
TO ITS CUSTOMERS AND BRING THE
COMPANY INTO PROFIT TO INCREASE
SHAREHOLDERS' WEALTH



ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that Annual General Meeting of the company will be held on Thursday the 28th October, 2021 at

09:30 AM at its registered office, JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad to transact the following

business :-

1. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 31.03.2021.

9 To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended June 30, 2021 together with the
Directors' and Auditor’s reparts thereon.

3, To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2022 and fix their remuneration. The Company received a notice 10
appoint M/S Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co. Charterad Accountants for appointrment as auditors of the company for the next year.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

JMAL AB
FAISALABAD: 07.10.2021 [Cgm%aﬁ[qy Sf,-.scl-rlsgryj

NOTES:

1 The share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 21.10.2021 to 28.10.2021 (both days inclusive).
Transfer received at the office of Share Registrar of the company, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Ltd., H. M.
House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore, by the close of business on 20th October 2021 will be treated in time.

9. Any individual beneficial owner of CDC entitled to attend and vote at this meeting must bring his/her GNIC or Passport to
prove his/her identity, and in case of Proxy must enclose an attested copy of histher CNIC or Passport. Representative
of Corporate Member should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

3. Any individual beneficial owner of CDC entitled to attend and vote at this meeting must bring his/ner GNIC or Passport to
prove his/her identity, and in case of Proxy must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport. Representative
of Corporate Member should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

4 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its S.R.0. 779(1)/2011 dated August 18, 2011 has
directed all listed companies to ensure that Dividend Warrants should bear the Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC) Numbers of the registered members. Members who have not yet provided attested copies of their valid CNICs /
NJ;‘TE (in case of corporate entities) are requested to send the same directly to the Share Registrar at aforementioned
address.

5. In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide SRO 787 (10/2014 dated September 8, 2014, those shareholders wha
desire to receive Notice & Annual Financial Statements in future through email instead of receiving the same by Post are
advised to give their formal consent along with their valid email address on a standard reguest from which is available
at the Company's website i.e. www.asimtextile.com and send the said form duly filled in and signed along with copy of
his/her CNIC / Passport to the Company's Share Registrar. Please note that giving email address for receiving of Notice
& annual Financial Statement instead of receiving the same by post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this
facility please ignaore this notice and, in such case, Nolice & Annual Financial Statement will be sent at your registered
address, as per normal practice.

B. Pursuant to section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, if company receives consent from shareholders holding
aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at geographical location to participate in the meeting through video
conference at least 7 days prior to the date of meeting, the company will arrange video conference facility in that city
subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please pravide following information and submit it
to the registered office of the Company.

V.. n.c e e anm st i b S i S s R A TR A T being a member of
ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED, holderof ..........ccooueeinininen Ordinary Shares as per Register Folio No./CDC A/G
MB...ovrmrnmiamssnit pra s hereby opt for Video conference facility at.................. ,

Signature of members

Members of the Company are requested to immediately notify the change of address, if any, and ask for consolidation
of their folio numbers.




ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN, S REVIEW

I am pleased to present the financial results of the Company for the period ended June 30
2021,

By the grace of almighty the company overcame the challenges posed by the CovID-19
pandemic and took full advantage of the enhanced demand for Yarn mostly from the domestic
down-stream textile Industry and maximized the output of the mills while improving overall
productivity. As a2 result company managed to earn profit of Rs. 76.262 million this year as
compared to the last year profit of Rs. 18.645 million.

We are confident that our existing business trend will continue adding to sustainable growth to
achieve better results during the current year and the rise in other avenues of business will
further add value to the net worth of the company.

The management remains committed to maintain focus on sustaining the financial performance
of your company. We thank our shareholders, customers and staff for their support and trust in
the company'.

In the end, T would like to thank the Board of Directors for their valuable contribution and
guidance throughout the period.

Eor and on behalf of the Board
S :

i\ //
October 07, 2021 41 ANWAR UL HAQ

Faisalabad. Chairman BOD
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of Asim Textile Mills Ltd are pleased to present 324 annual report together with the audited
Financial Statements and Auditors’ report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021.

1 bA June 30, 2021 ~ June 30,2020
Dpergtingindicarors Rupees in Millions Rupees in Millions
Sales 1726224 1472117
Gross Profit 124.850 46,648

_vaisiun for taxation 19,864 10,014
Profit after Taxation 76263 18.645
Profit per share 5.02 1.23 L

Future Outlook:

The Company is steadfast on its stated strategic initiatives aimed at enhancing margins by drastically
improving operations and affecting across the board cost reductions through efficiency in manufacturing.
Steps are taken to improve the financial health of the company by overhauling plant and machinery to
improve product quality and performance. Despite of the very challenging business conditions, we are
immensely hopeful for positive prospects in future

Compliance to good Governance and social requirements

Your company is committed to fulfill its responsibilities towards good pgovernance, social and
environmental responsibilities. To protect health and safety of employees and environment, company
provides able conditions and means to ensure compliance.

Human Resource and industrial relations

Under a defined and documented criteria in line with national and international laws people are recruited
and hired. This is demonstrated at all level beyond any racism, cast, sex or religion and respects human
rights, ethics and standards.

Trading in the Shares of the Company

Trading and holdings of company’s shares by Directors & Executives or their spouses were notified in
writing to the company Secretary along with the price, number of shares, form of share certificates and
nature of transaction which were notified by the company Secretary to the Board, SECF & PSX, within the
stipulated time. All such holdings have been disclosed in the Pattern of Shareholding.

Court Cases:

The company has instituted a suit in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore against Faysal Bank Limited
claiming damages on account of acquisition of un-remunerative agricultural land on the advice of FIBL for
not providing timely cash finance facilities despite written commitments and for charging illegal profits
against the principles of Islamic Banking and in contravention of the objective clause of its Memorandum of
Association, Articles of Association and against circulars issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. The amount
claimed for the first two counts is Rs.141.831 million (including claims of Central Excise Duty), whereas the
amount of last count has been left for the Court to determine,

The counter suit filed by the Faysal Bank for recovery of Rs. 454.502 million along with costs and cost of
funds before the Honorable Lahore High Court [Single Judge], Lahore has been adjudicated on 04.06.2015
against the company. The company has filed an appeal in Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore [Division
Bench) vide R.F.A. No, 1372/2015 on various grounds including the company being condemned unheard.



However, in this regard directors’ and the management of the company are confident that these cas es are
based and being contested on strong legal grounds and are likely to be decided in Company's favor.

Auditor's Observations:

The auditors have expressed uncertain in their audit report about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern due to accumulated loss of Rs.33.839 million against the paid up share capital of Rs. 151.77
million and the provision for cost of fund has not been accounted for in the Financial Statements in line
with the decision of Lahore High Court, Lahore in counter suit filed by Faisal bank Limited as described in
the auditors’ report to the members.

In this regard the management of the company is optimistic that there are no significant doubts about the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note. 1.2 Of these Financial Statements,

The management has filed an appeal in the Lahore High Court, Lahore (D.B) vide R.F.A. No. 137272015 on
various grounds including the company being condemned unheard. The management of the company is of
the opinion that this case is based and being contested on strong legal grounds and is likely to be decided in
Company's favor. Therefore, no provision for cost of funds is accrued.

Regarding the auditor's reservation of going concern relating to note 1.2 of financial statements, the
management of the company is making its strenuous efforts, optimal production strategies and effective
cost controls to improve the profitability of the company. The management is quite optimistic that
balancing and modernization of plant and machinery, improvement in future industry situation and better
production efficiency will definitely improve the future financial results. The management positively looks
forward to counter all challenges and is firmly committed to deliver the best possible results and will
continue to meet its objectives and goals. Based upon these aspects and continuing financial support from
directors and associates, the financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

We confirm that

a) Financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the requirement of the Companies Act
2017and present fairly state of affairs, results of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained in the manner required under Companies act
2017.

¢] Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are hased on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed
and explained.

©] The system of internal control is being implemented and monitored.
f) There are no significant doubts about the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

g] There has been no material departure from best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
listing regulations.

h) The key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed to this report.
i] Outstanding duties and taxes, if any, have been disclosed in the financial statements.

il The Chairman’s review dealing with the performance of the Company during the year ended June
30, 2021 forms part of this report.

k) Value of investments of Employees Provident Fund was Rs. 14.593 /- millions for the year ended
June 30, 2021,

1] Company has arranged in-house training program for its Directors,



m) Statement of compliance with the Best Practices of Corporate Governance is annexed.

n) We confirm that directors and CFO and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions

of the Company's shares during the year.

o) The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2021 is annexed with this report,

During the year under review, five meetings of the Board were held:-

(3]

Mr. Zahid Anwar Mr. Zeeshan Zahid

Mrs. Rukhsana Begum Ch. Ghulam Murtaza Bullar
Mr.Imran Zahid
Mss. Noorulain Zahid

Mr. Ali Raza Zafar

Mr. Zulgarnan

= | |

Mr. Anwar ul Hag

Lo T S T T LS Ly

The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:

Mr. Zulgaman. 4 Mr. Zeeshan Zahid
{Chairman)

4 Mr. Ali Raza Zafar 4

The HR Committee held one [1) meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:

1 Mr. Zeeshan Lahid

Mr, Ali Raza Zafar
1 Mr. Anwar ul Hag 1

[ Chairman }

Considering the accumulated losses brought forward, no dividend is recommended for the year
ended June30, 2021,

Present auditors, M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co Charte red Accountants have retired and M/s
Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co Chartered Accountants offers themselves for re-appointment. The Audit
Committee has recommended the appointment of M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co as auditors for
the year 2022,

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However in accordance
with the code of Corporate Governance it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration.

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this balance sheet relates and the date of
the Director's Report.

Transactions undertaken with related parties during the financial year have been ratified by the
Audit Committee and approved by the Board.

directors.

Zahid Anwar
Chief Executive
October 07, 2021,
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

a. Male: & members
b, Female: 1 member

The composition of the board is as follows:

Category Names

Mr. Zulgarmain |

a) Independent Director Mi. Ali Raza Zafar

Mr. Zeeshan Zahid

b} Other Non-execulive Director Mr. Anwar ul Hag

Mr. Zahid Anwar
c} Executive Directors Mr. Imran Zahid
Mrs. Noorulain Zahid (Female Director) |

Note: -

For a Board comprising of seven members, one-third equates to 2.33. Two independent directors
have been appointed, however, the fraction of 0.33 in such one-third is not rounded up as one
sinee the fractions is below half (0.5);

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company:

been taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Repulations:

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board;



10.

1L

12,

13.

14,

16.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The directors were apprised about the changes in the Code, applicable laws and their duties and
responsibilities to effectively manage the affairs of the Company for and on behalf of the
shareholders. Two directors of the Company having 14 years of education and 15 years of
experience are exempt from the requirement of directors’ training program, under purview of
regulation 19(2) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 20185,
whereas, five board members do not qualify for exemptien. The Company will arrange the
training program for the directors as provided under the Regulations in future.

The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of
internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chiefl financial officer and Chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below;
a) Audit Committee

1. Mr. Zulgarnain [Chairman)

2. Mr, Zeeshan Zahid (Member)

3. Mr. Ali Raza Zafar (Member)
b]) HR and Remuneration Committee

1. Mr. Ali Raza Zafar {Chairman)

2. Mr. Zeeshan Zahid [Member)

3. Mr. Anwar ul Hag [Member)

The terms of reference of the audit committee and HR and Remuneration Committee have been
formed, documented and advised to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings (quarterly /half yearly/yearly) of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval
of interim, hi-annual and final results of the Company as reguired by the Regulations,
b} HR and Remuneration Committee

The meeting of the HR and Remuneration Committee is held on requirement basis.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified amd
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the



17.

18.

19,

partners of the firm invelved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below.

Sr.No. | Non-Mandatory Requirement Reg. No. | Explanation 2l
1 Directors’ Orientation Program. 19 Twao directors of the Company
All companies shall make having 14 years of education and
appropriate arrangements to carry 15 years of experience are exempt
out orientation for their directors to fram the requirement of directors’
acquaint them with these training program, under purview
Regulations, applicable laws, their of regulation 19(2) of the Listed
duties and responsibilities to enable Companies (Code of Corporate
them to effectively govern the affairs Governance) Regulations, 2019,
of the listed company for and on whereas, five board members do
behalf of shareholders. not qualify for exemption. The
Company will arrange the training
program for the directors as
provided under the Regulations in
future,

Zahid Anwar 4 e
(Chief E [ inancial Officer
-\-\_‘_\-'-\.
™
Plac :J
October 67,2021 (




ASIM TEXTLLE MILLS LIMITED

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA FOR LAST SIX YEARS

Particulars 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Fi ia] Positi
Bl capial 151.770 151.770 151.770 151.770|  151.770 151,770
Fixed assets 978326 gE9.352 288.394 B91.550 B86.166 6d81.197
Accumulated depreciation 446371| 422675 398.986 381.333 354.768 329.093

Current assets - 557.261 484.858 A06.424] 353990 282.636 357.598
Current liabilities - 711.506 668.505| 662474 663819 644989 649528
Sales 1472117 1786446 1433.635 -_-12]4.0 20 1092.539 1129414
Other income 14953 1% it ) 3.433 3.548 o 438 ]. _ 16.494

 Pre tax profit/{loss) ) 28.659 80.593|  5B.746 39.939 (13.283) (13.435)
Taxation charge/(credit) B 10.014 24.425 17009  10.613 0.004 +.163

Statistics & Ratios [ |
Pre tax profit/[loss] Lo sales % 1'95_ [ 51 41 3.29 _'[-1_2;] o (1.19)
Pre tayx prafit/[loss] to capital % 189 53l 38.71 2632 [B.75) (B.B5)
Currentratlo - 1 1.178 1173] 1161 1: 1,53 1: 1.44 1: 1.55

 Paid up value per share (Rs) - 1000 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Earnings/(loss) after tax per share (Rs.) 1.23 &0 275 1.93 (0.88) (1.16)
Cash dividend% i s g ' w I e
Break up value per share (Rs.) 1.83 (0.01) (4.09) (7.22) (9.89) {9.63)
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.¥ KRESTON
« HYDER BHIMJI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained In Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulation, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Asim Textile Mills
Limited (the Company) for the vear ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our Responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control system sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ Statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendations of
the Audit Committee place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement fo the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021,

DATED: October 7, 2021 CHARTERED ACCOUNANTS
FAISALABAD Engagement Partner: Amber Razzaq ACA

Office Mo. 1, 2ad Floor, Legacy Tower, Kohinoor City, Faisalabad - Pakistan, Phone: +92-41-8731632, 8731650
E-mail: hyderbhimjifsdigmail.com Website: www krestonhb.com
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.» KRESTON
W HYDER BHIMJI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOLNTANTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Asim Textile Mills Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have ohtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform Accounting and Reporting Standards as
applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the
rhanges in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code] and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention of the members to the contents of note 1.2 to the annexed financial
statements, which disclose the appropriateness of going concern assumption used by the
Company in the preparation of financial statements, in spite of the accumulated losses stand at
Rs. 33.839 million against the paid-up share capital of Rs. 151.770 million as at June 30, 2021
and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 53.917
million. These factors indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and the Company may be
unable to realize its assets and discharge its obligations in the normal course of business. Qur
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 21 and 22 to the financial statements, which state that short term
borrowings include Morabaha Finance obtained from Faysal Bank Limited amounting to Rs.
417.590 million on 31% October 1999 in respect of which the Company has filed suit against
bank for charging illegal profits against principal of Islamic Banking and against circulars
issued by State Bank of Pakistan and in contravention of objective clause of its Memorandum &
Article of Association. Faysal Bank Limited has also filed a counter suit which has been
adjudicated on D4 June 2015 against the Company as a result of which the Company has to
settle the loan along with costs and cost of fund. Profit on these loans amounting to Rs.
194.161 million have already been provided for; however, provision for cost of funds has not
been accounted for, having been undeterminable at this stage by the management, being
aggrieved the Company has filed an appeal in Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore (Division
Bench) vide R.F.A No. 1372/2015 based on infield favorable judgments of Honorable Lahore
High Court, Lahore. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our audit report.

Following are the Key Audit Matter(s):

5.No | Key Audit Matter(s) | How the Matter was addressed in audit

1. | Contingencies:
(Refer notes 22 to the financial statements)

regulatory processes.

There are certain legal, taxation and * We assessed and tested the design and
regulatory matters which are beyond the operating effectiveness of the controls
control of the company. Consequently, the over the identification, evaluation,
management makes judgments about the provisioning and reporting of legal, tax
incidence and quantum of such liabilities and regulatory matters.
arising from litigation, taxation and determined that we could rely on
regulatory claims which leads to the these controls for the purposes of our
impacts for the future outcome of legal or audit.

s In view of the significant judgements

There is an inherent risk that legal required, we evaluated the Company’s
exposures are not identified and assessment of the nature and status of
considered for  financial  reporting litigation, claims .

% and provision



purposes on a timely basis. Importantly,
the decision to recognize a provision and
the basis of measurement are judgmental.

assessments, and discussed with |
management to understand the legal
position and the basis of material risk
positions. We received legal letters
from the Company's external counsel
setting out their views in major cases.

Specifically, we challenged the timing
of recognition for cases where there
was potential exposure but it was not
clear that a provision should be raised
e.z. where obtaining reliable estimates
are not considered possible.

As set out in the financial statements,
the outcome of litigation and
regulatory claim is dependent on the
future outcormne of continuing legal and
regulatory processes and
consequently the calculation of the

provision is subject to inherent
uncertainty.

Revenue recognition:
(Refer note 23 to the financial statements)

We identified recognition of revenue of
the Company as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators and gives rise to
an inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to  misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

Revenue is recorded in accordance with
the requirements of [FR5-15 which
provides a comprehensive model of
revenue recognition and requires the
Company to exercise judgement, taking
into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying the
model to contracts with customers.

We performed a range of audit procedures in
relation to revenue including the following:

We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and pperating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue;

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents;




For further information, refer to the
summary of significant accounting
policies, revenue from contracts with
customers’ note 5.13 to the financial
statements.

s We performed analytical review
procedures and other test of details
over various revenue  streams
including the cut-off procedures to
check that revenue has been
recognized in  the  appropriate
accounting period;

* We assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures as per the guidelines set
out in the applicable financial
reporting requirements,

Inventory existence and valuation:

(Refer notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements)

The Company has significant levels of
inventories amounting to Rs. 163.558
million as at the reporting date, being
13.5% of the total assets of the Company.

There is a risk in estimating the eventual
NRV of items held, as well as assessing
which items may be slow-moving or
obsolete.

The Company's principal accounting
policy on stores and spares and stock in
trade are disclosed in notes - 5.3 and 5.4
to the financial statements.

The significance of the balance coupled
with the judgments and estimates
involved on their valuation has resulted in
the inventories being considered as a key
audit matter,

Our audit procedures over existence and
valuation of inventory included, but were not
limited to:

* To test the quantity of inventories, we
assessed the corresponding inventory
observation instructions and participated
in inventory counts on sites. Based on
samples, we performed test counts and
compared the quantities counted by us
with the results of the counts of the
management;

= For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average cost
calculation and compared the weighted
average cost appearing on wvaluation
sheets:

* We tested that the ageing report used by
management correctly aged inventory
items by agreeing a sample of aged
inventory items to the last recorded
invoice:

* On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to




recent selﬁng prices and reperformed the
calculation of the inventory write down, if

Ay,

« We also made enquires from
management, and considered the results
of our testing above to determine whether
any specific write downs were required,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan,
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
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from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
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circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s husiness; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Amber
Razzaq - ACA.

Date: October 07,2021
Place: Faisalabad




ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30,2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
property, plant and equipment & 506,790,243 531,954,937
Long term deposils 7 15,038,156 15,038,156
521,828,399 546,993,093
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 8 22,045,411 |' 18,497,318
Srock in trade 9 141,513,069 138,079,285
Trade debls 10 59,992,572 62,994,335
Advances, deposits an d prepayments 11 8,257,823 68,744,708
Short term investments 12 23,651,905 18,340,946
Accrued Income 13 449,870 397,616
Tax refunds due from government 14 21,142,474 32,575,457
Cash and bank balances 15 413 808,044 || 217,631,187 |
690,861,168 557,260,932
TOTAL ASSETS 1212669567 _LI0AZSLOIS.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital
17,500,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 175,000,000 175,000,000
lssued, subscribed and paid up capital 16 151,770,000 151,770,000
Accumulated losses (33,839,180) (121,097,747)
Surplus/ (Deficit) on remeasurement of investments 1,691,756 {2,928,204)
Surplus on revaluation of propetty,
plant and equipment 17 234,990,049 245,985,909
354,612,625 273,729,958
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities 18 113,298,671 119,017,735
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 19 112,318,757 99,754,203
Acecrued markup 20 194,161,422 194,161,422
Short term borrowings 21 417,590,707 417,590,707
Provision for taxation 707,385 -
744,778,271 711,506,332
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 2z - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,212,689, 567 1,104,254,045
s e S

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an intepral part of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupeecs

Sales - net 23 1,726,224,177 1472117542
Cost of sales 24 (1,601,373,671) (1,425,469,625)
Gross profit 124,850,506 46,647,917
Operating expenscs
Distribution cost 25 (1,003,080) (447,190]
Administrative expenses 26 (30,946,425) (30,059,9586)
Other operating expenses 27 (7,527,965) (2,388,605

(39477470) (32,895841)
Profit from operations 85,373,036 13,752,076
Finance cost 28 (175,604) [45,783)
Other income 9 10,929,706 14,953,011
Profit before taxation 96,127,138 28,659,304
Taxation 30 (19,864,431) (10,014,497
Profit for the year 76,262,707 18,644,807
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 31 5.02 123

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Re-stated
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year 76,262,707 18,644,807
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Unrealized gain on changes in fair value of investments 5,310,959 083,305
Related effect of deferred tax liability (690,999 -
4,619,960 983,305
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 17 { - 84,083,640
Related effect of deferred tax liability - (21,412,5915)
62,670,725
Total comprehensive income for the year BDEBBE,-&G‘J‘ #2208 837

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
MNote Rupees Rupees
a) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 96,127,138 28,659,304
Adjustments for non cash and other items:
Depreciation 26,806,597 23,606,675
Profit on deposit accounts (9,407,085] {14,948,372)
Profit on deposit with SNGPL {1,159,153) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment [124,444) -
Balances written back (239,024)
Warkers' profit participation fund 5,187,689 1,552,400
Workers' welfare fund 2,323,230 836,295
Exchange loss/(gain] on foreign currency translation 17.046 (4,639]
Finance cost 175,604 AL 783
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 119,707,598 39,837 446
Changes in working capital
{Increase) /decrease in current assets
Stares and spares (3,548,093) [6,943,218)
Stock in trade (3,433,784) 30,570,068
Trade debts 3,001,763 9,810,396
Advances, deposits and prepayments 60,486,965 (26,771,895)
Tax refunds due from Government ,336,050 041,597
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26,490,314 50,079,138

91,333,215 57,686,086
Cash generated from operations 211,040,813 07523532
Profit on deposit with SNGPL received 1,106,899
Finance cost paid (59,883) (45,783)
Stalf retirement gratuity paid (381,131) (50,914)
Warkers' profit participation fund paid [1,552,400) [4,343,895]
Income tax paid (22,089,045) (27,256,711)
Exchange loss on foreign currency translation (17.046] 4,639
Balances written back 239,024
Net cash generated from operating activities 188,287,231 05,830,868

b) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT IVITIES

Additions in property, plant and equipment (2,002,459) (4,850,000)
Proceeds from disposal of preperty, plant and equipment 485,000 -
Prefit on deposit accounts received 9,407,085 14,948,372
Net cash generated from investing activities 7,889,626 10,098,372
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [a+h) 196,176,857 75,929,240
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 217,631,187 141,701,947
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 413,808,044 217,63 1.187

The annexed notes 1 1.942 form an integral part of these financial stalements,




Balance as at June 30, 2019

Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the vear

Incremental deprectation on revalued property,
plant and egquipment for the year [haote 17]

Tax effect on incremental depreciation (rote 17)

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Profit for the year

(ther comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Incremental depreciation on revalued property,
plant and eguipment for the year (note 17]

Tax efTect on incremental depreciation (note 17)

Balance as at june 30, 2021

ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Surplus/ Surplus on
Aceumulated [(Deficit) on revaluation of
gre Cagha losses remeasurement  property, plant oo
of investments and equipment
[ R uw p e e s ]
151,770,000 (147,988,345) (3,911,509) 191,560,975 191,431,121
15,644,807 = 18,644,807
983,305 62,670,725 63,654,030
18,644,807 983,305 62,670,725 B2,298,837
- 11,613,790 (11,613,790)
- (3,367,999) 3,367,999
151,770,000 (121,097,747) (2,928,204]) 245,985,909 273,729,958
76,262,707 - - 76,262,707
4,619,960 - 4,619,960
- 76,262,707 4,619,960 BO.8BZ.667
15,487,127 (15,487,127)
- [4,491,267) = 4,491,267 -
151,770,000 (33,839,180) 1,691,756 234,990,049 354,612,625

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

11

1.2

Asim Textile Mills Limited (the Company) was incorpurated in Pakistan on 29 July, 1990 under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now Companles Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quoted at Karachi, |slamabad and Lahore Stock
Exchange (now Pakistan Stock Exchange], with effect from January 11, 2006, The Mill is situated at 32 - KM, Maln Sheikhupura
Road, Tehsil Jaranwala, District, Faisalabad in the province of Punjab and the registered office of the Company is situated at K
House, 32-W, Susan Read, Madina Town, Falsalabad. The principal business activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of
yarn.

Going concern assumption

The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 33.839 million (2020: Rs, 121.098 millivn] as against issued, subscrived and paid up
capital of Rs, 151.77 million and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 53.917 million (2020: Rs.154.245 millian)
as at June 30, 2021. These factors indicate the existence of material uneertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and the Company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its
eblipations in the normal course of business,

Inspite of the huge accumulated losses, negative current ratio, the management of the Company is making its strenuous efforts,
optimal production strategies and effective cost controls to improve the performance of the Company, The balancing and
modernization of plant and machinery in previous years, improvement in future industry situation and better production
efficiency are the main factors for improvements. The management positively looks forward to counter all challenges and is
firmly committed to deliver the hest possible results and will continue to meet its objectives and goals. Based upon these aspects
and continuing financial support from directors and associates, the finaneial staternents have been prepared on going concern
basis.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

o |

2.2

2.3

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASH] as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 1FRSs, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the respective
palicy notes,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the Company's functiona) currency.

4. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

31

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year

= Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’; 1AS 39, ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
IFRS 7, ' Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform:

The changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform;

(i) modify specific hedge accounting requirements so that entities would apply those hedge accounting requirements
assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedped cash flows and cash flows from the hedging
instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform:

(i) are mandatory for all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform;

(iif} are not intended to provide relief from any other consequences arising from interest rate benchmark reform (if a
hedging relationship no longer meets the requirements for hedge accounting for reasons other than these specified by
the amendments, discontinuation of hedge accounting is required);

(iv) and require specific disclosures about the extent to which the entities' hedging relationships are affected by the
amendments.

The amendments do not have any significant impact on these financial statements.
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Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions:

The changes in Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions [Amendment to IFRS 18] amend IFRS 16 to provide lessees with an
exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification; require lessees that apply the
exemption to account for COVID-19-related rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications: require lessees that
apply the exemption to disclose that fact; and require lessees to apply the exemption retrospectively in accordance with [AS
8, but not require them to restate prior peried fipures. The amendment does not have any impact on these financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements’, and IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accou nting
estimates and errors';
These amendments and consequential amendients to other [FRSs:

(i} usea consistent definition of materiality throughout [FRSs and the Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting:
(ii)  clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and

(iiif) incorporate some of the guidance in [AS 1 about immaterial Information,

The amendments do not have any significant impact on these financial statements,
Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - Definition of a Business:

The IASB has issued amendments alming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has
acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimun, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an eleetion to use a concentration test. The amendment does not have
any significant impact on these financial statements.

The other amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial vear are considered not

to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's financial reparting and operations and are therefore nat
disclosed in these financial statements.

3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are issued but not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Com pany

Amendment to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective for annual period
beginning on or after January 01, 2 0Z2):

The amendment prohibit deducting from the cost of an iter of property, plant and equipment any proceeds fram selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and conditlon necessary for It to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, in profit or loss. The amendment is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Amendment to [AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' - Dnerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract {effective for annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2022):

The amendment specify that the 'cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’, Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contrack {examples would be direct labour,
materials] or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts [an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract]. The amendment is not
likely to have an impact an the Com pany's financial statements,

Amendments to IFRS 3, "Business Combinations' - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective for the
Lompany's annual period beginning on January 01, 2022);

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements, issued in 1989 with a reference ta the Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting, that was issued in March
2018, without significantly changing its requirements. In addition, the Board added an exception te the recognition principle
of [FRS 3 1o avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2' gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities and It clarified
existing guidance in [FRS 3 for contingent assets, The amendment is not likely to have an im pact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and crrors’ - Definition of Accounting
Estimates [effective for the Company's annual period beginning on January 01, 20 23):

The amendments replace the definition of 3 change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, accounting estimates are “mon etary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty®. Entities develop accounting estimates If accounting policies require items in financial statements 1o be
measured in @ way that involves measurement uncertain ty. The amendments clarify that a change In accounting estimate
that results from new information or new developments is not the correction of an error. The Company is yet to assess the
full impact of the amendment.



Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of flnancial statements' and IERS Practice Statement 2- Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (effective for the Company's annual period beginning on January 01, 2023):

The [ASH has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help
companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to 1A5 1 include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accountin g policies rather than their significant accounting policies;

clarifying that accounting policles related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves
immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The [ASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the application of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures, These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company's future financial statements.

- Amendments to [AS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements” - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
[elfective for the Company’s annual period beginning on or after Jan uary 1, 2022):

The amendments specify that the conditions which exist at the end of the reporting pericd are those which will be uged to
determine il a right to defer settlement of 5 liahility exists. Management expectations about events after the reporting date,
for example on whether a covenant will be breached, or whether early settlement will take place, are not relevant. The
amendments elarify the situations that are co nsidered settlement of a liability.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle. The new cycle of improvements addresses
improvements Lo following approved accounting standards [effective for annual period beginning on or after
January 01, 2022):

- IFES 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. This amendment simplifies the application
of IFRS 1 for a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of IFRS Standards later thap jts parent - Le. if a subsidiary
adopts [FRS Standards later than its parent and applies IFRS 1.D16{a), then a subsidiary may elect to measure
cumulative translation differences for all fervign operations at amounts included in the consolidated financial
statements of the parent, based on the parent's date of transition to [FRS Standards.

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amendment clarifies which fess an entity includes when it applies the 10 percent’
test in assessing whether to derecognize a Anancial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the

entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's
behalf.,

- A5 41 Agriculture. The amendment removes the requirement for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biclogical asset using a present value technique. This will ensure consistency with the
requirements in IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement,

There are other amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and are
also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here,

Further, the following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE]),
which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpases of their
applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS -1 'First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’,

IFRS - 17 “Insurance Contracts'.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in coformity with the approved accounting standards require management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other Factars that are belleved to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an onguing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and fulure periods,
ludgments made by management in application of the approved accounting standards that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a sigrificant risk of matecial adjustments in the next vear are discussed in respective policy notes. The
areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where Judgment was exerrised
i application of accounting palicles are as follows:

*  Bstimate of useful life aof property, plant and equipment - note 5.1
*  Impairment of non financial assets - note 5.2

*®  Stores and spares - note 5.3

*  Stockin trade - pote 5.4

*  Provisions - note 5.11

*  Contingencies - note 5,12

.

Taxation - nate 5.15
L ir.n



3. SUMMERY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policles adopted in preparation of these fnancial slatements are set out below and have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

51
51.1

51.2
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3.3

3.4

5.5

Froperty, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment except free hold land, building an freehold land, plant and machinery and electric installations are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Building on freehold land, plant and
machinery and electric installations are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, it any. Frechold land [s stated at revalued amount,

Cost in relation to operating fixed assets signifies historical cost, Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets,

Subseguent cogts are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
prohable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the entity and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost
incurred to replace a component of an item of operating fixed assets is capitalized and the asset so replaced is retired from use.
Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss durl ng the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as to write off the historical cost of
the assets over their expected useful life at the rates mentiened in note 6.1 of these Anancial statements,

Depreciation on additions during the year is charged for the full month in which the asset is available for use while na
depreclation is charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off, The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the
management at each financial year end and adjusted ifimpact on depreciation is significant.

Any gain or loss on disposal of assets is included in statement of profit ot loss in the vear in which the assets are de recognized,
Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identifled impairment loss and represents direct cost of material, labour,
applicable overheads and borrowing costs on qualifying assets. Teansfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as
and when assets are available for its intended use.

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stock in trade and stores and spares, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indicatlon of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's
recoverable amount Is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives ar that are n ot vel available for use,
recoverable amount is estimated at each repo rting date.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recaverable AMOURL A
cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other
assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the cartying amount of any goodwill allecated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata hasis. Im pairment losses on goodwill shall not be reversed.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates uscd to determine the recoverahle amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would
hawve been determined, et of depreciation or amortization, if no im pairment loss had been recognized. Prior impairments of non-
financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reparting date.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value EXCEPE items-in-transit which are valued at cost
accumulated to the balance sheet date, Store, spares and loose tools are regularly reviewed by the management to assess their
net realizable value (NRV). Provision is made for slow maving and nbsolete store items when =o identified,

Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizahle value, Cost is determined as follows:

Raw material - At factory Annual average cost.

- I Transit Invoice value plus direce charges in respect thereof,
Packing material Inwvoice value plus direct charges in respect thepeof,
Work in process and finished goods Prime cost including a proportion of production overheads,

Wastes are valued at net realizable value.

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of businese less the extimated cost of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale,

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognized at Fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost which approximate fair value of
the consideration receivable, less any allowance for expected credit losses,
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The Campany has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance. To measure the expected eredit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue,

Uther receivables are recognized at amortized cost, Jess any allowance for expected credit losses,
Short term investment

lnvestments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to the need for liguidity
or changes in interest rates are classified as available for sale,

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are measured at fair value. The Company uses latest stock excha nge quotations to
determine the fair value of quoted investments, Gain or lnsses on availahle for sale investments are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income untl the investments are sold or disposed off, or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at
that time cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income, is re-classified from equity to profit and
loss as re-classification ad|ustment,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and cheques in hand and at banks and include
shart term highly liquid investments. The cash and cash equivalents are readily canvertible to known amount of cash and are
subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

Surplus on revaluation of pro perty, plant and equipment

Increazes in the carrying amounts arlsing on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of tax, in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading 'Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment’.
However the increase is recognized in statement of profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognized in statement of profit or loss,

Decreases in the carrving amounts arlsing on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of tax, in profit or
loss. However revaluation decrease that reverse previous increases of the same asset [s recognized in other comprehensive
income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to that asset, The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income
reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading 'Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment’.

Following amounts are transferred directly to retained earnings from equity under the heading 'Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment’ through the Statement of Changes in Equity:

©  an amount equal to the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and
depreciation based on the original cost of that asset; or

* anamount equal to carrying amount of revaluation surplus of the asset on its disposal,

All transfers to / from the aceount of "surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment’ are net of applicable deferred
income tax. Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment reported under cquity is not available for distribution of
dividend.

Stalf retirement henefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company had changed its policy for staff retirement benefits since 31st March, 2008 fram stalf retirement gratuity to
provident fund and staff retirement gratulty up to that date was stated on termination basis. At present the Company operates an
approved provident fund scheme.

Defined contribution plan

There is a contributory provident fund for all employees of the Company for which contributions are charged to profit or loss as
and when incurred,

The Company makes monthly eontribution to the fund at the rate of 8.33% whereas employess of the Company also make
monthly contributions to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. The assets of the fund are held separately under the control
of trustees.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the conside ration to
be paid in future for poods and services received, whether ar not billed to the Company. Exchange gaing and losses arising on
translation in respect of liabilities in forcign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities,

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event when it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of ohligation can be made, Provisions are reviewed at pach reporting date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate.

Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inhere ntly involves the exercise of significant judgrment as the outcome of the futyre events
cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the avallahility of the latest information, estimates the value of
contingent assets and liabilities, which may differ on the occurrence;/ non- occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

T
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange
for rendering of services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company;

(i) [Identifies the contract with a customer:

{ii] identifies the performance abligations in the contrace;

(iii] determines the transaction price;

(v} allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations in the contract; and
[¥] recognizes revenue when each performance ohligation is satisfied,

Variable consideration within the transaction price is estimates and determined using either the ‘expected value' or 'most likely
amount’ method. The measurement of variahle consideration is subject to a constraining princlple whereby revenue will only be
recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will
ot ocour, The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty azsociatecd with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially recognized as deferred revenue in the form
af a separate refund liability.

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is
generally at the time of delivery,

b) Interest income

Profit on bank balances in deposit accounts and interest income on deposit with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited [SNGFL)
are recoghized on a time proportion basis on the prin cipal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

¢}  Profit on fair value through other comprehensive income investments

Unrealized gains ¢ (losses) arising on fair value measurements of investments classified as ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income' are included in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Gains / (losses] arising on disposal of investments are recognized on the dare when the transaction takes place. When the
investment is disposed off or derecognized, the cumulative gains [ (losses) previously recognized in other com prehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other income / {other expen SE5),

d) Other revenue
Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established,
Foreign currency translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in loreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the halance
sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction,
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign turrency are translated into rupees
at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that
are stated at fair value are translated into rupees al exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.
Exchange pains and losses are included in the statement of profit or luss immediately,

Taxation
Current taxation
The current income tax is computed on the basis of profit for the year adjusted for fiscal purposes, minimum tax ufs 113 or

Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT] u/fs 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after taking into account the tax credit or rebate, if
any.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary diffecences arising from differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis wsed in the
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxahle temporary differences and
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible te mparary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

Deferred tax is caleulated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of
profit or lass, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s length. The prices are determined in accordance with comparahle
uncontrelled price method.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved, Appropriations of profits are reflected in the statement
of changes in equity in the peried [k which such approptiations are made,
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Financial instruments
Financlal assets

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held in order to collect contractual cash Aows which arise on specified dates
and that are “solely payment of principal and interest [SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. A debt investment is measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise un specified
dates that are solely principal and Interest and as well as selling the asset on the basis of ite fair value. All other financial assets
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the Lompany makes an irvevocable election on initial
recognition to present gains and losses an equity instruments in ather comprehensive Income. Despite these requirements, a
financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value thro ugh profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate,
an accounting mismatch,

Classificati 1 ¢ of fi jal
Investments and other financial assets
Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the follewing measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or threugh profit or loss), and
- those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. In order for a financial asset to be dassified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interect {SPP1}" o the principal amount outsta nding. This assessment
is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument lovel, The Company's business mode] for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash fows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and Josses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. The Company
reclassifies debt investments when and enly when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest,

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset, There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash lows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or
loss and presented in other income { (uther expenses) Lopether with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the stalement of profit or loss,

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOLCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash Dows and for selling the financial assets, where the assots’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income, excepl for the recognition of impairment losses [and reversal of impairment
losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit er loss, When the Bnancial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in other income / {other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
Income/ (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item In the statement of profit or loss,

- Fairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value th rough profit or loss, or financial assers mandatorily required to be measured at fair vahue.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpese of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model, Notwithstanding the eriteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if dolng sa eliminates, or significantly reduces, an aceounting mismatch.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss are carcied in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

The rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in Full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or [b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfereed control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash Raws from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of awnership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
azset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liahility are measured on a basis thar
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a puarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
earrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Corm pany could be required to repay.

[mpairment;

The Company record an allowance for a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach for all loans and other debt
financial assets not held at FVPL,

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive, The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest
rate,

For trade and other receivables, the Company has applied the standard's sim plified approach and has caleulated ECLs hased on
lifetime expected credit losses. The Com pany has established a provision matrix that is hased on the Company's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment, However, in certain
cases, the Company may alse consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Company,

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement:
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective he dge, as appropriate

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial lishilitles
designated upon initial recognition as at falr value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabllities held for trading are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition ar fair valye through
profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

= Loans and horrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, Gains and lnsses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amertized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization s included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bea ring loans and borrowings,
A financial liability Is derecognized when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the sama lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an extsting liahility

are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original lability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial assets and liahilities

Financial assets and financlal liabilities are st off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a
IEHEH.II"- enforceable l'jﬂhr to set off and the Company intends gither to settle nn a nar hacie nr to camlion she —oooee - 1. o
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6.2 The detail of operating fixed asset disposed off during the vear are as follows:

A Accumulated Book Sale Mode of 1 .
G Particulars of Buye
Description Cost Deprecition Valie  Prociads ain Disposal a yers
[ R u P E E £ 1]

Vehicle

7 _ o Mr. Imran ul baq - Gulistan Market,
Suzuki Cultus 550,000 189444 360,556 445000 124444 Negotiation Faisalabad, Pakistan,

_—

6.3  Depreciation charge for the vear has been allocated as under:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
24 24,795,572 21,354,852
26 2,011,025 2,341,823
26,806,597 23,696,675

6.4 Had there been no revaluation, the related figures of Mmeehnld land, building on frechold land, plant and machinery and electric installations

as at June 30 would have been s follows:

Freehold land

Building on freehold land
Plant and machinery
Electric installations

Frechold land

Building on freehald Jand
Plant and machinery
Electric installations

6.5 Forced sale values of revalued assets

2021
i Accumulated Written down
Cost ;
depreciation value
[ R U P EE 5 |
4,062,000 . 4,062,000
40,631,000 34,438,432 2,192,568
484862470 324737722 160,124,756
20,077,383 14,990,714 3,086,667
549,632,861 374,166,870 175,465,991
2020
Accumulated Written down
Cost 2
depreciation value
[RO PFPEE 5]
4,062,000 4,062,000
40,631,000 34112507 6518493
183,937 478 316,322274 167,615,204
20,077,383 14,425,531 5651852
548,707,861 364,860,312 183,847 549

The forced sale values of revalued assels are based on fair value measurement as at June 30, 2020,

Frechold land

Buildirg on freehald land
Flant and machinery
Electric installations

6.6 Details of immovable property in the name of the Company:

Forced Sale Values

2021 2020
[ Rupees |
54,190,900 54,190,900
99,474,120 99,474,120
237,960,000 237,960,000
29,600,000 29,600,000
421,225,020 421,225,020

Usage Location

Area

Production unit

7=

Chak # 09 - BB, 32 - KM, Main Shetkhupura Road, Tehsil
laranwala, District, Faisalabad.

56 Kanals 18 Marlas 4 Sarsai




2021 2020
7. LONG TEEM DEPOSITS Note Rupees Rupees
curity deposit
Su;;gﬂf‘ﬂﬂsl 5 71 12,258,028 12,258,028
- FESCO 2,734,078 2,734.078
- w;ﬂ.:;A 8,550 8550
~CDC 37,500 37,500
15,038,156 15,038,156
7.1 This represent the security deposit with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited [SNGPL} against supply of natural gas to the
Company. It is subject to mark up at the rate of 1 year KIBOR minus 3% per annum or fixed rate of 5% per annum
whichever is lower receivable in arrears.
8 STORES AND SPARES
Stores 2,635,622 12,037,918
Spares 12,409,789 6,459,400
22,045,411 18497318
9. STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials 92,635,054 120,169,326
Work in process 8,693,422 7,973,295
Finished poods 2.1 40,184,593 9,936,664
141,513,069 138,079,285
91 Itincludes waste stock amounting te Rs, 3,875,968/- [2020: Rs. 1,218.1 71/-] measured at net realizable valye,
10. TRADE DEBTS
Considered good:
Local - unsecured 59,992 572 62,994,335
11. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances- considered good
Advances to suppliers 111 6,014,827 61,443,615
Advances to employees 300,000 262,500
Deposits
Letter of credie 106,445 2,886,496
Trade depuosit 11.2 1,403,470 3,709,443
Prepayments
Prepaid insurance 433,081 442,334
8,257,823 64,744, 7THH
11.1  Itincludes amount of Nij (2020: 37,607 000,/+] advance payment made to Zeeshan Energy Limited - a related party an
account of purchase of electricity.
11.2  This represent the amount paid to Sul Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited [SNGPL) against supply of natural gas to the
Company.
1Z, SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)
MNAFA islamic active allocation plan 12.1 15,798,245 12,467,394
15 investment (J5 islamic fund) 12.2 7.853,660 5,873,550
23,651,905 18,340,946
12.1  These have been valued by using published net asset value [NAV] as at 30th June, the number of units held by the
Company are 130,128.5322 units {2020: 125,693 4644 units].
12.2  These have been valued by using published net asset value {NAV) as at 30th June, the number of units held by the
company are 75,032,5785 units (2020: 75,032 5785 units).
13. ACCURED INCOME
Interest on SNGPL depasit 7.1 449,870 39?,ﬁ£
14, TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERN MENT
Sales tax refundabie 21,142,474 2%.478,524
Income tax refundahle 5 3,096,533
i - 21,142,474 32,575,457




15.

16.

17.

Note
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at bank
- In current accounts 151
= In deposit accounts 15.2

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
191,135 1,161,285
150,689,852 189,613,344
262,927,057 26,856,554
413,616,909 216,469,902
413,808,044 217,631,187

15.1 Itincludes foreign currency amounting to USD 1,000/~ {2020: USD 1,000/-) and SAR 2,46 1/- [2020: SAR 2. 461/-).

15.2 The rate of profit on deposit accounts is ranging from 2.78% to 5.80 % per annum [2020: 2.755% to 12.25% per

anmum).
ISS5UED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL
2021 2020
Number of shares
15,177,000 15,177,000 Ordinary shares of Re. 10 each fully paid in cash

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance
Add: Surplus arisen on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Less: Related effect of deferred tax liahility

Less: Incremental depreclation on revalued property, plant
and equipment transferred to accumulated loss
Add; Related effect of deferred tax Nability

Closing balance

151,770,000 151,770,000
245,985,909 141,560,975
- 84,083,640
- (21,412,915)
- 62,670,725
(15.487,127) (11,613,790)
4,491,267 3,367,499
(10,995,860) [B,245,791)
234,990,049 245,985,909

17.1 First revaluation of the Company's building on freehold land and plant and machinery was carried out as on September
30, 1995 by an independent valuer M/s Igbal A. Nanjee & Co, Lahore on the basis of depreciated replacement valyes,

17.2

Second revaluation of the Company's freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery was carried out

on September 30, 2000 by an independent valuer Inspectorates Corporation International [Pvt) Ltd, Lahore and the
same was verified by SBP's approved auditors an the basis of depreciated replacement values,

17.3 Third revaluation of the Co mpany's freehold land, building on freehold land,
installations was carried out on June 30, 2012 by an independent valuer M /s Nizam

of depreciated replacement values.

17.4

plant and machinery and electrie
¥ Associates, Faisalabad on the basis

Fourth revaluation of the Company's freehold land, building oo freehold land, plant and machinery and electric

installations was carried out on Sep 30, 2015 by an independent valuer M/s Amir Evaluators & Consultants, Peshawar

on basis of depreciated replacement values,

17.5

depreciated replacement values,

17.6

Fifth revaluation of the Company's freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery and electric

installations has been carried out on June 30, 2020 by an independent valuer M/s S.A. Associates, Lahore on basis of

The fair valuation of the revalued assets are considered 1o represent a level 3 valuation based on significant non-

observable inputs being the location and condition of the assets, The fair value are subject to change owing to change in
input. However, the management does not expect there to be a material sensitivity to the fair values atising from the
non-observable inputs. The basis of revaluation for items of thess fixed assets were as follows:

17.6.1  Freehold tand

Property brokers, dealers and estate dpents were contacted to ascertain the asking and selling prices for properties of

the same nature in the immediate nelghborhood and adjoining areas, Neighboring pro

perties which have been recently

sold or purchased, wera Imvestigated Lo ascertain a reasonahle selling / buying price. Propertics that were up for sale
were examined for asking price. An average of the above values was then assigned to the property.

17.6.2

Building on freehold land

Construction specifications were noted for each factory and residential building / structure and current construction

rates were used to obtain replacement values of building, to which a depreciation formula was applied, b

Company’s estimates of balance life to arrive at the current assessed value,

—_—

ased upon the




18.

19.

17.6.3  Plant and machinery

17.6.4

Plant and machinery have been evaluated / assessed by keeping in view their present physical condition, the remaining
useful life / economic life and technological obsolescence. Further, new replacement values were arrived by using
current local and foreign market values for the similar type of plant and machinery. These current local and fareign
market values were taken into account on the basis of technical obsolvscence, efficlency, maintenance, replacement and
other related factors involved.

Electric installations
These were evaluated / assessed by keeping in view their present physical condition and the remaining useful life /
econcmic life, Further, new replacement values were arrived by using current market values for the similar type of

assets, These current market values were taken inte account on basis uf efficiency, maintenance, replacement and other
related factors involved.

201 Z020
Kote Rupees Rupees
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred tazation 18.1 113,298,671 118,636,604
Staff retirement pratuity 18.2 - 381,131
113,298,671 119,017,735
181 Deferred taxation
1811 Opening balance 118,636,604 106,246,856
(Adjusted )/ Provided during the year [5.:337,933) 12,389,748
Closing balance 18.1.2 113,298,671 118,636,604
18.1.2 This comprise of following:
Deferred tax lability:
Taxable temporary differences relating to operating assets 25,736,952 26,492,444
Taxable temporary differences relating to short term 640,999
investments
Taxable temporary differences relating to surplus cn 87,763,419 92,254,686
revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets:
Deductible temporary  differences related to  staff - (110528)
retirement benefits
Deductible temporary differences related to minimum tax (892,699) -
113,298,671 118,636,604
18.1.3  The lability of deferred tax has heen computed by applying the tax rate of 200,
18.2 Staff retirement gratuity
Opening balance 381,131 432,045
Paid during the year (381,131) [50,914)
Closing balance - 381,131
18.2.1  The Company had changed its policy for staff retirement benefits since 31st March, 2008 from staff retirement gratuity
to provident fund and staff retirement gratulty up to that date was stated on termination basis, During the year, the
Cornpany has paid the remaining halance of gratuity to the concerned employees.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 19.1 39,895,491 15,608,492
Accrued expenses 58,864,609 22,817,600
Advances from customers 3,602,459 9,049,534
Provident fund trust 19.2 845,384 B98.373
Withholding income tax payahle 424,385 514,157
Sales tax pavable 17,318,460 11,630,143
Due to related parties 19.3 367,331 4,325,335
Workers' profit participation fund 19.4 5,303,410 1,552,400
Workers' welfare fund 5,100,395 2,777,165
Other pavables 596,833 331,000
132,318,757 99,754,203
19.1 This includes amount of Rs. 154 04,496/~ [2020: Nil) payable to Zeeshan Energy Limited- a related party against
purchase of electricity.
19.2 This represents amount due to provident fund trust for the month af June-2021 for which payment was made at July 12,

A

2021 (2020: July 15, 2020).



19.3 This represents chief executive, directors and member eurrent account balances maintained with the Co mpany,
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
19.4 Workers' profit participation fund
Opening balance 1,552,400 4,343,895
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business 115,721 -
1,668,121 4,343,895
Allocation for the year 27 5,187,689 1,552,400
6,855,810 5,896,295
Payments made during the year {1,552,400) (4,343 895)
Closing balance 3,303,410 1,552.400
20. ACCRUED MARKUP
Acerued markup on secured morabaha finance 201 194,161,422 194,161,422

21

22.

20.1

The company has ceased the payment of markup since July 01, 2006, as it has filed a suit against Faysal Bank Limited in
the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The facts of the litigation are explained in note 22.1.1,

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking company

Secured

Morabaha I o I 340,901,898 340,901,898

Morabaha II : L 74145100 74,145,100

Unsecured

Interest free bank overdraft £1.2 2,343,709 2,544,709
417,590,707 417 590,707

211

2111

212

Morabaha | represents secured finance by converting various morabaha finances inta long term finance at interest rate
of 13% per annum, whereas, the Morabaha || represents an interest free morabaha finance by converting various
unpaid markups. These loans are secured against first charge of Rs. 505 million on fived assets and personal guarantees
of directors and Chief Executive of the Co mpany.

The Company is not repaying the morabaha finances as it has filed a suit against Faysal Bank Limited in the Honorable
Lahore High Court, Lahore. The bank has also filed a counter suit praying for a decree to he passed in its favor for a sum
of Rs. 454.502 million against the defendants jointly and severally, with cost of funds at the rate of 20% or as certified by
State Bank of Pakistan from date of defaull and 20% liquidated damages plus service charges and all costs, charges,

The Company has obtained interest free hank overdraft facility from Favsal Bank Limited but ceased the repayment of
the averdraft due to litigation in courts. The facts of the litigation are explained in note 22,11,

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

221

22,11

Contingencies

The Company has instituted a suit in the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore against Faysal Bank Limited (FEL)
claiming damages on account of acquisition of un-remunerative agricultural land on the advice of FEL for not providing
timely cash finance facilities despite written commitments and for charging illegal profits against the principles of
Islamic Banking and circulars issued by the State Bank of Pakistan in addition to contravention of the objective clause of
its Memorandum & Articles of Association. The amount claimed for the first two counts is Rs.141.831 million (including
claims of Central Excise Duty), whereas the amaunt af last count has been left for the Court to determine,

The counter suite filed by the Faysal Bank for recovery of Rs. 454.502 million along with costs and cost of funds before
the Honorable Lahore High Court (Single Judge), Lahore has been adjudicated on 04.06,2015 against the company. The
company has filed an appeal in Honourahle Lahore High Court, Lahore [Divizion Bench) vide RFA No. 1372/2015 an
various grounds including the company being condemned unheared. The learned Division Bench graciously allowed the
appeal on 20.02.2020 and impugned judgment and decree dated (4.0 6.2015 was set aside. Consequently leave to appeal
was adjudged to have been granted to the appellant company and the case is directed to be proceeded on that basis
after framing issues and recording of evidences. Due to litigations, the Bank is not responding and confirming the

halance to the company. Having been undeterminable at this stage, provision for cost of funds has not been aceounted
far.

bW e



23,

24,

22.1.2

22.1.3

By virtue af Finance Act, 2017 , Section 54 of the Inceme Tax Ordinance, 2001 was amended. Through the revised
provision, a tax equal to 7.5 percent of accounting profit for the year is required to be levied on every public company,
other than a scheduled bank and modarba, if distribution of cash dividend or bonus shares of at least 40 percent ul"!he
accounting profit after tax for the year is not made within six months. The tax rate was revised at 5% of :!cmuntmg
profit for tax year 2018 and 2019 Constitutional petitions have already been filed by some companies !Jefare
Hanourable High Courts challenging the tax and the Honourable Sindh High Courts has held the impugned provisions of
Section 5A to be ultra vires of the Constitution, and was accordingly struck down,

The department has issued notice In terms of Section 122{9] for the year ended [une 30, 2017 for charpe of tax
amounting to Rs, 2,995427/-. The management has challenged the notice on the ground of jurisdiction before
Honourable Lahore High Court vide writ petition No 48653 of 2021, who has disposed of by directing the concerned
Commissiener to seize the malter to determine the guestion of jurisdiction before finalization of the assessment
proceedings. Accordingly provisions amounting to Re, 2,995 427/~ for the vear ended June 30, 2017 , Bs 2,937,309 for
the year ended June 30, 2018 and Rs 4,029,657 /- for the year ended June 30, 2019 have not been made in these
financial statements in respect of the additional tax liahility and the management expects a favourable outcome in this
respect.

The department while initiating sales tax audits of the Company for the tax years 2012 and 2014, created demands on
account af supplies from suspended/blacklisted units agaregated to amount of R, 818,182 /-. Being aggrieved the
Company filed appeals before Commissioner Inland Revenue [Appeals] who upheld the department's stance. The
Company filed second appeals hefore Appellate Tribunal Infand Revenue Lahore on 15-Aug-2012, 25-Tul-2014, and 09-
Oct-2014 which are pending for final decision. The management is contesting the case diligently and legal advisor is
optimistic that the cases will he decided in the favour of the Company, Therefore, no provision has been made i these

accounts.

222 Commitments

There are no significant commitments at the reporting date which need o be disclosed in the f

nancial statements,

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
SALES - NET
Yarn sales 1,993,275,368 1,696,383 604
Waste sales 26,406,978 26,010,821

2,019,682,346  1,722,394.425
Less: Sales tax (293,458,169) (250,276.883)
1,726,224,177 1472117542

COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed 241 1,102,224,398 1,020,569,762
Stores and spares consumed Z4.2 66,203,813 23,117,572
Paclking material consumed 28,401,611 20,916,854
Salaries, wages and bensfits 24.3 166,279,375 148,579,971
Fuel and power 227,908,437 185,790,704
Fee and subscription 114,114 -
Repairs and maintenance 10,961,530 2,020,707
Postage and telecommunication 32,857 -
Insurance 3,834,299 2,846,022
Depreciation 6.3 24,795,572 21,354,852
Others 1,565,721 996,503

Work in process
Opening balance

1,632,341,727

1426,193,027

7,973,295 T.637,117
Closing balance (8,693.422) (7.973,295)
(720,127) (336,178)

Cost of goods manufactured 1.631,621,600 1,425,856 849

Finished goods

Opening balance 9,936,664 2,544, 440
Closing balance (40,184,593) (9,936,664
(30,247,929) (367,224]

241 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening balance

1,601,373,671

1,425 469,625

120,169,326 151,462,794

Purchases 1,071-.!55‘-'].122_ 9E9, 276,292
- 1,194,859,452 1140.739,088
Closing balance (92,635,054) (120,169,326)

bk <

1,102,322 4,398

1.020,569,762

_—l o



25,

26,

27,

8

9.

30.

24.2 STORES AND SPARES CONSUMED
Opening balance
Purchases

Closing balance

24.3 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 4.346 million
contribution,

DISTRIBUTION COST
Selling commission

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Director's remuneration

Staff salaries and benefits
Postage and telecommunication
Electricity, pas and water
Printing and stationery
Traveling and conveyance

Fee and subscriptions

Rent, rates and raxes

Legal and professional
Entertainment

Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Auditors' remuneration
Insurance

Advertisement

Depreciation

Others

26.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. D427 million
comtribution,

26.2 Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit fee
Half yearly review
Cut of pocket expenses

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Warkers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund
Exchange loss on foreign currency translation

FINANCE COST

Interest on workers' profit participation fund
Bank charges and commission

OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

Profit on deposit accounts
Exchange gain on foreign currency translation
Frofit on deposit with SNGBPL

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Balances written hack

TAXATION
Current year
Prior year
Deferred tax

Deferred tax relating to the ariginaticon and reversal of temporary differences

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupecs
18,497,318 11,554,100
69,751,906 30,060,790
88,249,224 41,614,890
[22,045.411) (18,497.3148)
66,203,813 23,117,572

(2020: Rs. 3.663 million) in respect of the provident fund

— 1 447,190
3,600,000 3,900,000
26.1 13,379,243 14,066,808
527,772 534,524
1,133,539 1,296,748
176,830 168,341
439,062 338,527
1,611,287 1,321,833
621,556 274,257
1,034,050 812,804
234,417 76,240
37,520 :
4,387,620 3,172,836
26.2 807,000 445,000
690,142 675,837
87,750 11,700
6.3 2,011,025 2,341,823
167,612 622,678
30,946,425 30,059,956

(2020: Rs, D414 million} in respect of the provident fund

700,000 365,000
57,000 55,000
50,000 25,000

807,000 445,000

5,187,689 1,552,400
2,323,230 836,295
17,046 .
7,527,965 2,388,695

115,721 -
59,883 45,783

175,604 45783

9,407,085 14,948,372
- 4,639
1,159,153 .
124,444
239,024 .
10,929,706 14,953,011
25,893,363 22,081,763
; (3,044,099)
(6,028,932) {9.023.167)



31 The tax paid by the Company on turnover basis in proceeding years exceeds the actual tax liahility on the basis of
Company’s taxable income, as per clause (C) of sub section 2 of section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The
excess amount of tax paid in proceeding years is hrought forward for adjustment against tax liability fur the year,
Therefore, provision for taxation has been made on turnover under Section 113(1) ofthe Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
30.2 Relationship between income tax and profit before income tax;
Profit before income tax 96,127,138 28,659,304
Income tax rate 29%, 2004
Income tax on profit before income tax 27,876,870 8,311,198
Tax effect of:
- Admissible expenses (2,637,680) (3.299.483)
- Inadmissible expenses 7,773,913 6,872,036
- Brought forward adjustment 301 (10,198,012)

= Minimum tax
- Prior vear

10,198,012

3,078,272

- Deferred tax 6,028,932
(8,012,439) 1,703,299
19,864,431 10,014 497
31. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2021 2020
311 Earnings per share - Basic
Profit for the year (Rupees) 76,262,707 18,644 HO7
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 15,177,000 15,177,000
Earnings per share - basic [Rupess) 5.02 1.23

312 Earnings per share - Diluted
A diluted earnings per share have not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in
issue as at June 30, 2021 and 2020 which would have any effect on the carnings per share if the option to convert is
excroised,

3Z. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2021
Chief Executive Directors Executives
ettt T 1 e —
Managerial remuneration 1,500,000 2,100,000 3,284,280
House rent allowance - - 1,313,711
Utilities allowance - - izg4ze
Provident fund - - 273,581
1,500,000 1 ll}ﬂgﬂﬂﬂ EEZDDIGOD
Number of persans 1 2 2
2020
Chief Executive Directors Executives
mmmsscmmmmasec— RUPBEE ~mememeocomnnes
Managerial remuneration 1,500,000 2,400,000 2,943 429
House rent allowance - - 1,193,371
[Milities allowance - - 298,343
Provident fund . - 248,520
1,500,000 2400000 + 723,663
Number of persons 1 2 2

33. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise assaciated undertakings, entities under common divectorship, directors, major shareholders, key
management personnel and retirement benefit fund. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
these related parties. Amounts due from and due to related parties, if any, are shown under relevant notes to fnanclal
statements. Remuneration to chief executive, directors and key management personne] is disclosed in note 32, Detail of

transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements
are as follows:



2021 2020

Name Nature of transactions R Diiiiiont
Asim Textile Mills Limited, Emplovers' Provident Company's contribution to the fund 4,773,418 +077,688
Fund Trust
CEQ fdirectors /members Expenses paid - net 3,958,004 2,456,533
Zeeshan Energy Limited Purchasefadvance of electricity 62,460,596 AT,607.000
331 Following are the related parties with wham the Company had entered inte transactions or have arrangements [

agreements in place.

Common
c Gk Basis of Directorship / Address and Country of
TR e Relationship Percentage of Incorporation
shareholding
I Textile Mills Limited Associated Comimuon Directors  JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina
Undertaking Town, Faisalabad, Pakistan.
Zeeshan Energy Limited Associated Common Directors  JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Mading
Undertaking Twwn, Faisalabad, Pakistan,
Aszim Textile Mills Limited, Em ployees’ 2 K House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina
L
Provident Fund Trust Histeed N/A Town, Faisalabad, Pakistan.
34. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION [UoM ] 2021 2020
[nstalled capacity after conversion into 205 |[KGs] 11,407,803 11,407,803
Actual production after conversion into 2045 [KiGs] 9,240,827 8,677,912

35.

3a.

341

Reasons for increase

The increase in actual production during the year when compared with capacity is mainly on account of:

- The actual production is planned to meet the internal demand and orders in hand,

EMPLOYEES' PROVIDENT FUND TRUST
size of the fund (Rupee) 18,419,324 16,186,223
Cost of investment made (Rupee) 12,606,825 12,606,825
Fair value of investment [Rupee) 17,386,387 15,129,413
Percentage of investment made (%) 94.39 93.47
351 The breakup of fair value of investment is:
2021 2020
2021 % age 2020 Yh age
KEP FAM Limited 4,892,214 2814 3.B37.671 2537
CDC Trustee URL Fund Z,700,682 15.53 2,015,907 13,32
Others (Fixed deposit) 7.000,000 40.26 TO00,000 46.27
Bank balances 2,793,491 16.07 2,275,835 15.04
17,386,387 100.00 15,129,413 100,00
35.2 The above information is based on the latest un-audited financial statements of the Asim Te xtile Mills Limited,
Employees’ Provident Fund Trust.
353 The Investments out of provident fund have been made In accordance with the provisions of seetion 212 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and conditions specified thereunder,
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2021 2020
Average number of employees during the year 555 5086

NumEer of emplayees atend of the year 559 556



2021 2020

37. SHARIAH SCREENING DISCLOSURE Note Rupees Rupees

ki 8

be s

Loans/advances as per Islamic mode

Shaort term borrowings 21 417,590,707 417,590,707

Shariah compliant bank deposits /bank balances

Bank halances 1,627,736 62,003
Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances 10,705 14,261
Revenue earned from a shariah compliant business 1,726,224,177  1,472,117.,542

Gain/loss or dividend from shariah compliant investments

Unrealized gain on short term investments 5,310,959 933,305
Exchange gain earned *
Mark up on Islamic mode of financing 20 194,161,422 194,161,422

Profits or interest on any conventional loan or advance

Frofit on deposit accounts S { 9,396,380 14,934,111
Profit on deposit with SNGPL 1,159,153 -
Relationship with shariah compliant banks

Name of institutions Relationship with institutions

Al Barka Bank Pakistan Limited Bank balance

Dubai [slamic Bank Bank balance

Mepzan Bank Limited Bank balance

Faysal Bank Limited Short term borrowings

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the financial assers and financial liabilities approximate their fir values, Fair value is the amourt for which
an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to settle a lability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and there is no intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms,

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readlly and regularly available from an
exchange dealer, broker, industey group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
cecurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’ requires the Company to classify falr value measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assot or liability,

Level Z: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quated prices included within Leve| 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 : Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (ie.
unobservahle inputs),

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes
have ocourred.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics, including their levels in
the fair value hievarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair
l.'ilge if the carrying amount is a reasonahle approximation of fair value,
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and mana gement of working capital with a view to maintain an
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The Company raJt:.Jw:; an effecﬂw..- cash management and
planning policy and maintains flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines ava]lahle._ Market risks are managed by the
Campany through the adoption of appropriate policies to cover curre ney risks and interest rate risks.

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Market risk
- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk

39.1  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity risk. The
sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at June 30, 2021 and 2020,

39.1.1 Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate hecause
of changes in market inlerest rates, Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from deposit with SNGPL and balances in
deposit accounts.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest beari ng financial instruments is as follows:

2021 2020
Variable rate instruments
Security deposit with SNGPL {Rupees) 12,258,028 -
Effective interest rate in perce ntage 3.67
Bank balances in deposit accounts [Rupees) 262,927,057 26,856,558
Effective interest rate in percentage 4.29 8.00

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates on balances in deposit accounts and deposit with SNGPL at the year end date, fluctuate by 100 bps higher /
lower with all other variables, in particularly foreign exchange rates held constant, profit before taxation for the vear 2021
and 2020 would have been affected as follows:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Effect on profit and loss of an Increase in interest rate for deposit with SNGPL 114,122 -
Effect on profit and loss of an increase in inte rest rate for balances in deposit aceounts 2,041,491 1,739,617
2,155,613 1,739,617

Decrease in interest rates at June 30 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. Sensitivity analysis
has been prepared on symmetric basis,

39.1.2 Currency risk / Foreign Exchange risk:

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument, will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to foreign
currency transactions.

Exposure to Currency Risk

The Company's exposure to currency risk Is restricted to the balance In foreign currency bank acesunt, The Company’s
exposure to currency risk is as follows:

o 2021 2020
Fartituivg Girvency | F.currency Rupees || F.Currency | Rupees
Banik bal uss 1,000 157,800 1,000 168,250
Al alance
SAR z461 103,657 2461 110,253
e ZRBORE, N
261,457 278,503

The following significant exchange rates have heen applicd as at reporting date:

2021 2020

Foreign Currency

Selling | Buying Selling | Buying

% [R UPE E §] [R UP E E §]
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39.1.3

39.2

Currency rate sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened by 5% against the foreign currencies with all other variables
held constant, the profit before taxation would have increased for the year 2021 and 2020 by the following amounts:

2021 2020
Foreign Rupees Rupees
Us s 7.346 7.832
SAR 4,825 5132
12,171 12,964

A 5% strengthening of the functional currency against foreign currencies at June 30 would have had the equal but opposite
effect of these amounts,

Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on o symmetric basis. The analysis assumes
that all other variables remained constant.

Other price risk:

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate hecause of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk], whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, ar factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to price risk, because of the investments held by the Company
in mutual funds, and classified on the statement of financial position as fair value through other comprehensive income. To
manage its price risk arislng from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio.

Shart term investments include fair value th rough ather comprehensive income of Rs. 23,65 LB05/- [2020: 18,340,946/-)
which were subject to price risk.

If redemption price on mutual funds, at the year end date, fluctuate by 5% higher / lower with all other varia bles held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been Rs. L,100,996/- (2020: 853,771/-) higher / lower, mainly as a
result of higher / lower redemption price on units of mutual funds,

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk representing accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if one party to a financial
instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or its failure to perform duties under the contract as contracted.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations that is susceptible to changes in
cconomic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's
perfurmance to developments affecting a particular industry. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date Is
as follows

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 15,038,156 15,038,156
Trade debts 59,992 572 62,994 335
Advances 300,000 262,500
Short term investments 23,651,905 -
Accrued income 449 870 37616
Bank balances 413,616,909 216,469,902

513,049,412 295,162,509

Long term deposits have been mainly placed with suppliers of electricity, gas and telecommunication services, Considering
the financlal position and credit quality of the institutions, the Company's exposure to credit risk is not significant.

For trade debts, internal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their
financial positions, past experiences and other fictors. Moreover, the management regularly monitors and reviews
customers' credit exposure, Accordingly, the Lompany is not exposed to any significant credit risk,

Advances consist of advances to employees. Advances tg employees are secured against employees' retirement benefits.
Other receivable constitute additional sales tax receivable from parties. Therefore, the Company is not exposed to any
significant credit risk on these advances and other receivables,

Short term investments are investment in mul ual funds, The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because counter party 1s
bank with reasonably high credit ratings.

Accrued income constitute accrued profit receivables from SMNGPL. Considering the financial position and credit quality of
the institutions, the Company's exposure to credit risk is not significant.

2021 2020
[ Credit Ratings |
NBP Fund Management Limited AM1 AM1
[5 Investments Limited AMZ AM2

| P R |
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The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical
infarmation about counterparty default rate:

Mame of Bank

Al-Barka Bank [Pakistan) Limit
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Li
Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

|5 Bank Limited

MCEB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Mational Bank of Pakistan
United Bank Limited

Date

25-Jun-21
30-Jun-21
30-Jun-21
A0-Jun-21
23-Jun-21
23-Jun-21
30-Jun-21
28-Jun-21
30-Jun-21

Long term

AAA

Short term

Al
Al+
A-1+
A1+
Al+
Al+
A-1+
Al+
:*L'I.+

Outlook

Stable
Stable
Stable
Stable
Stable
Stahle
stable
Stable
Stable

Apency

PACRA
JCR-VIS
JCR-VIS
JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS
PACRA
JCR-VIS

Due to the Company's long standing relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their

strong fnancial standing, management does not ex

the Company. Accordingly, the risk 5 minimal.

39.3  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will

The Company’s approach to manage liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient level of i
and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of co
balance sheet liquidity ratios through working capital mana
monitored through budgets, cash flow projections and co

believes that the Company is nat exposed to any liguidity risk.

The following are the contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2021 and 2020:

pect nan-perfermance by these counter parties on their abligations to

encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

quidity by holding highly liquid assets
mmitted credit facilities. This includes maintenanee of
gement. Further, Hguidity position of the Company is closely

mparison with actual results by the Board, The managemenl

Financial Liabilities ;

Trade and other payables
Accrued markup
Short term borrawings

Financial Liabilities :

Trade and other payables
Acerued markup
Short term borrowings

2021
Carrying Contractual Within 6 More than & More than 1
amount cash flows months months and | year and up to
up to 1 year 5 years
[ B u p e e s |
100,569,648 100,569,648 100,569,648 - -
194,161,422 194,161,422 194,161,422 - -
417,590,707 417,590,707 417,590,707 = =
712,321,777 712,321,777 712,321,777 - -
2020
Carrying Contractual Within 6 :z:i;@n: ,Mﬂm t:,‘m" 1m
amount cash Mows months I s il
up to 1 year 5 years
Il R u p e e s 1
69,855,465 69,855,465 6%E55,465 -
194,161,422 194,161,422 194,161,422 x -
417,590,707 417,590,707 417,590,707 = -
681,607,594 681,607,594 681,607,594 -

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital ma nagement is to safeguard the
maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit rating and optimal capital structur
far its existing and potential investment projects,
their wealth, benefits for other stakeholders and r

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic cond

assels. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,

shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt,

As at June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company had surplus reserv
s

25 to meet its requirements,

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
es in order o ensure ample availability of finance
50 that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders thereby maximizing
educe the cost of capital.

itions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends

paid to



41. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

rocran

The financial statements were authorized for issue on «----- e

42. GENERAL
42.1 Corresponding figures

====--- by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary for the purpose of better presentation.
However, during the year following reclassifications are made in the corresponding flgures,

Particulars From To Rupees

Other payables Trade creditors - "Trade and Other payables - 'Trade and other 331,000
other payables' payables '

Trade debts Prepayments - 'Advances, Lecal - unsecured - "Trade debts' 182,604
deposits and prepayments’

Interest on SNGPL deposit Accrued profit - 'Advances, Accrued income 397616
deposits and prepayments’

Trade deposit Prepayments - 'Advances, Trade deposit -'Advances, 3,709,443
deposits and prepayments' deposits and prepayments’

Prepald insurance Prepayments - "Advances, Frepaid insurance <" Advances, 442 934
deposits and prepayments’ deposits and prepayments'

Surplus/ [Deficit) on Accumulated loss Surplus/ [Deficit) on 2,028,204

remeasurement of investments

Selling commission Commission - 'Sales - Net'

42.2  Following nomenclatures have been changed during the year.

Current year nomenclature

Interest on SNGPL deposit

Due to related parties

Withholding income tax payable
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Tax refunds due from government
Sales tax refundable

Income tax refundable

Provision for taxation

Selling commission

NAFA islamic active allocation plan
Managerial remuneration

Freehold land

Other income

Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Others

Electricity, gas and water

Rent, rates and taxes

Unrealized gain on changes in fair value of investments

42.3 Rounding

Flgures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

'

remeasurement of investments

Distribution Cost 447,190

Erevious year nomenclatyre

Accrued profit

Due to related parties-Directors
Withhelding tax payable

Advances and prepayments

Balance with statutory authorities

Sales tax

Income tax - net

Provision for income tax

Commission

MAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund
Salary

Land - freehold

Other operating income

Profit per share - basic and diluted
General expenses

Electricity, fuel and water

Rates and taxes

Unrealized profit on changes in fair value of
investments

g g ML/""/' ;

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEPHINANCIAL OFFICER



ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
DETAIL CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS ON 30-06-2021
[ CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS TOTAL SHARES | ]
5.1 Dir
1 MR. ZAHID ANWAR 3,988,300 26.28
| -2 MR, IMRAN ZAHID 1,618,400 10.66
3 MR. ZEESHAN ZAHID 1,516,900 9.99
4 MS. NOORULAIN ZAHID 957,050 6.57
5 MR, ALl RAZA ZAFAR 200 0.00
] MR. MUHAMMAD ZULGARNAN 500 0.00
i MR. ANWAR UL HAQ 500 0.00
TOTAL: 8,122,150 53.52
5.2 Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties
TOTAL: 1] 0.00
5.3 NIT and ICP
I_ 1 INVESTMENT CORP.OF PAKISTAN 23,500 0.15
TOTAL: 23,500 0.15
5.4 Banks, DFls, NBFls
1 SAUDI PAK IND.& AGRI. INV. CO. [PVT.) LTD. 12,700 0.08
4 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN B4 0.00
3 MATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 121 (.00
4 FAYSAL BANK LIMITED 7,500 0.05
5 THE BANK OF KHYBER 26,000 0.17
5 THE BANK OF PUNJAB 400 0.00
7 NATIONAL BAMK OF PAKISTAN - TRUSTEE WING 100,800 .66
TOTAL: 148,163 0.98
5.5 Insurance Companies
TOTAL: 0 0.00
5.6 Modarabas and Mytyal Funds
1 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMEMNT {UNIT) TRUST 822,300 5.42
TOTAL: 822,300 5.42
5.7 Shareholding 5% or mor
1 CDC - TRUSTEE MATIONAL INVESTMENT {UNIT) TRUST 822,300 542
TOTAL: 822,300 5.42

Page 1 of 2




ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
DETAIL CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS ON 30-05-2021

l

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS TOTAL SHARES | % ]
5.8 General Public
| 1,996[a- Local 6,007,886 39.59
b- Foreign 0.00
TOTAL: 6,007,886 39.59
5.9 Others - Joint Stock Companies
1 |MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1 0.00
2 INCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT 1,500 0.01
3 __|NH HOLDINGS (PVT} LTD 1,000 0.01
TOTAL: 2,501 0.02
5.9 Others - Trust
TOTAL: 0 0.00
5.9 Dthers
1 [INKAGA CONSULTANTS (PVT.) LTD. 500 0.00
2 |BROADAXIS TECHNOLOGIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 50,000 0.33
TOTAL: 50,500 0.33]
[ Grand Total: 15,177,000] 100.00]

Page 2 of 2



ASIM TEXTILE MILLS LTD
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

| FORM F PROXY
IMPORTANT

This Form of Proxy, in order to be effective, must be depaosited duly completed at the Company's
Registered Office JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad, not less than 48 hours before
the time of holding the meeting.

A proxy must be a member of the Company. Signature should agree with the specimen registered with
the company.
Please guote registered folio number

I/'We

of

Being a member of the Asim Textile Mills Limited and holder
of ordinary shares, hereby appaoint

of

Who is also a member of the company as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us
and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at registered office of
the Company, JK House, 32-W, Susan Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad, on 28.10.2021 at 9.30 am or at
any adjournment thereof,

As witness my/our hand this day of 2021
Signed by the said in the presence of
Date: (Member's Signature)
Place (Witness's Signature)

Affix Rs.5/-

revenue stamp which must
be cancelled either by
sighature over it or by some
other means
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